
 
3/19/2024 8:16 AM 

 

                 

                          136 North Monroe Street  
Waterloo, WI  53594 

    Phone: (920) 478-3025 
      Fax: (920) 478-2021 

      www.waterloowi.us 
 CITY OF WATERLOO COUNCIL AGENDA 

COUNCIL CHAMBER OF THE MUNICIPAL BUILDING – 136 N. MONROE STREET 
Thursday, March 21, 2024 – 7:00 p.m. 

 
Pursuant to Section 19.84 Wisconsin Statutes, notice is hereby given to the public and news media, that a public meeting will be held to consider the 

following: 
 

1.) CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & ROLL CALL 
 

2.) MEETING MINUTES APPROVAL: March 7, 2024 
 

3.) CITIZEN INPUT / PUBLIC COMMENT (3-Minute time limit) 
 

4.) MEETING SUMMARIES (since last Council meeting 
a. 03/19/2024 Community Development Authority 
b. 03/21/2024 Finance, Insurance and Personnel 

 
5.) CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 

a. February Reports of City Officials & Contract Service Providers 
i. Parks 
ii. Fire & Emergency Medical Services 
iii. Building Inspections 
iv. Public Works 
v. Police 
vi. Library Board 
vii. Water & Light Utility Commission 
viii. Watertown Humane Society 
ix. Cable TV 

 
6.) UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

a. Ordinance 2024-09 Updating Section §19.8 Waterloo Water & Light Commission and §19-9 Waterloo 
Sewer Commission 

 
7.) RECOMMENDATIONS OF BOARDS, COMMITTEES AND COMMISSIONS  

a. Finance, Insurance and Personnel 
i. February 2024 Financial Statements: Payroll $83,050.67, General Disbursements $1,170,733.27 and 

Clerk/Treasurer’s Reports[see on municipal website] 
ii. Jensen Proposal to Replace 2 Furnaces in Municipal Building 

b. Waterloo Utilities 
i. Increase the pay rate from $35 for a meeting to $50 for a meeting per Commission request. 

c. Public Safety & Health 
i. Updated 200 code Burn Permit Changes (redline) 

d. CDA 
i. 2023 Annual Report 

   
8.) NEW BUSINESS 

a. Van Holten’s purchase agreement [NOTE: The City Council may meet in closed session per Wis. Stat. 19.85 
(1)(e) Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other 
specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session. Upon concluding a 
closed session, the Committee will reconvene in open session.] 

 
9.) FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
10.) ADJOURNMENT 

 
Jeanne Ritter 

Clerk/Deputy Treasurer       Posted & Emailed: 03/15/2024.  

http://www.waterloowi.us/
https://www.waterloowi.us/clerk-treasurer/pages/monthly-financial-statements


 
3/19/2024 8:16 AM 

PLEASE NOTE: It is possible that members of and possibly a quorum of members of other governmental bodies of the municipality may be in attendance at the above meeting(s) to gather information. No action will be 

taken by any governmental body other than that specifically noted. Also, upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional 

information or to request such services please contact the clerk’s office at the above location 



CITY OF WATERLOO COMMON COUNCIL - MEETING MINUTES: March 7, 2024 
[a digital recording of this meeting also serves as the official record] 

 

1) CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & ROLL CALL. Mayor Quimby called the meeting to 
order at 7:00 p.m. Alderpersons present:  A. Kuhl, C. Kuhl, Thomas, Weihert, Cummings, Griffin and 
Haseleu. Attending Remotely: none Absent: none Others attending in-person: Police Chief Sorenson; 
DPW Yerges; Utility Superintendent Sorenson; Fire Chief Benisch; M. Petrie, A.Ciha, M. Giese, E. 
Butzine, P. Dow, Clerk Jeanne Ritter and WLOO Videographers.  

 
2) MEETING MINUTES APPROVAL: February 15, 2024 [Cummings/A.Kuhl] VOICE VOTE: Motion Carried.  

 
3) CITIZEN INPUT / PUBLIC COMMENT – M. Giese 

 
4) MEETING SUMMARIES (since last Council meeting) 

a) 02/20/2024 CDA 
b) 02/26/2024 Fire/EMS 
c) 02/27/2024 Library Board 
d) 02/27/2024 Plan Commission 
e) 03/05/2024 Water & Light 
f) 03/07/2024 Public Safety & Health 
g) 03/07/2024 Public Works and Property 

 
 

5) NEW BUSINESS 
a) Ordinance 2024-09 Updating Section §19.8 Waterloo Water & Light Commission and §19-9 

Waterloo Sewer Commission Motion to redraft ordinance to allow only second council member only 
for one year until replacement can be found.  [Weihert/A.Kuhl] VOICE VOTE: Motion carried. 
 
 

6) RECOMMENDATIONS OF BOARDS, COMMITTEES AND COMMISSIONS 
a) Waterloo Fire and EMS 

i) New Hire for Full-time Firefighter Motion to approve Aiden Ciha. [Cummings/Griffin] VOICE VOTE: 
Motion carried.  Abstain Kuhl and Weihert 

b) Public Safety and Health 
i) 2024 MACC Fund Trek 100 Motion [Thomas/Cummings] VOICE VOTE: Motion carried. 

c) Waterloo Utilities 
i) Contractor’s Application for Payment-Waterloo Utilities Motion 1,054,946.90 [A. Kuhl/Cummings] 

ROLL CALL: Yes 7 No 0 Motion carried.   
ii) City of Waterloo Project Tracking Budget and Funding Allocations for Wastewater Remodel. 

Motion 1,087,193.15 [A. Kuhl/Cummings] ROLL CALL yes 7 No 0. Motion carried.   
iii) Town & Country Monthly Report   
iv) Increase pay from $35 a meeting to $50 a meeting per Commission request. Tabled [Weihert/Kuhl] 

VOICE VOTE: Motion carried.  Add to next meeting.   
d) Parks Commission 

i) Resolution 2024-03 Authorizing Seasonal Parks Facility Rental Agreement. Motion 
[Weihert/Cummings] VOICE VOTE: Motion carried.   
 

7) UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a) Pedestrian Bridges Inspection.  Motion to cancel Jewel contract.  ROLL CALL: Yes 7 No 0. Motion 

carried.   
 

Motion to go into closed session [C.Kuhl/Cummings] (7:48 pm) ROLL CALL Yes 7 No 0. Motion 
carried.  
 

b) Discussion on Property for Development [NOTE: The City Council may meet in closed session per 
Wis. Stat. 19.85 (1)(e) Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of 
public funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining 



reasons require a closed session. Upon concluding a closed session, the Committee will reconvene in 
open session.] 

 
Motion to go into open session [Weihert/C. Kuhl] ROLL CALL: Yes 7 No 0 Motion carried.   

 
8) FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS -  FEMA training for all council members. 100 and 

700. 
 

9) ADJOURNMENT [Weihert/Griffin] VOICE VOTE: Motion carried. 8:20 pm 
 
 
Attest: 
Jeanne Ritter Clerk/Deputy Treasurer 

 















Fee Type Amt Paid Paid Date % Due to 3rd Party Amt Due to 3rd Party

Permit # 24WTRC-0001-24-02H | 157 Mill Street, Waterloo, WI 53594 | HVAC Permit

HVAC- Replacement & Misc. Items- 
Residential

$59.12 2/1/2024 60.00% $35.47

24WTRC-0001-24-02H Subtotal $35.47

Permit # 24WTRC-0002-24-02E | 599 Van Buren Street, Waterloo, WI 53594 | Electrical Permit

Electrical- Replacement & Misc. Items- 
Residential

$50.00 2/8/2024 60.00% $30.00

24WTRC-0002-24-02E Subtotal $30.00

Permit # 24WTRC-0003-24-02P | 287 North Monroe Street, Waterloo, WI 53594 | Plumbing Permit

Plumbing- Replacement & Misc. Items- 
Residential

$50.00 2/16/2024 60.00% $30.00

24WTRC-0003-24-02P Subtotal $30.00

Permit # 24WTRC-0004-24-02E | 287 North Monroe Street, Waterloo, WI 53594 | Electrical Permit

Electrical- Replacement & Misc. Items- 
Residential

$50.00 2/16/2024 60.00% $30.00

24WTRC-0004-24-02E Subtotal $30.00

Permit # 24WTRC-0005-24-02BEPH | 217 Maple Drive, Waterloo, WI 53594 | Residential Alteration

Electrical- Replacement & Misc. Items- 
Residential

$50.00 2/29/2024 60.00% $30.00

Remodel- Residential $250.00 2/29/2024 60.00% $150.00

HVAC- Replacement & Misc. Items- 
Residential

$50.00 2/29/2024 60.00% $30.00

Plumbing- Replacement & Misc. Items- 
Residential

$50.00 2/29/2024 60.00% $30.00

24WTRC-0005-24-02BEPH Subtotal $240.00

Invoice Date:

Terms:

Due Date:

2/29/2024

Net 30 Days

3/30/2024

Invoice Number: 275559

Customer #: 11-WATERL2

Customer PO #:

Invoice

Waterloo, WI, City of
136 North Monroe Street
Waterloo, WI 53594

Page: 1



Summary  by Fee Type

Item Code Amount

Electrical- Replacement & Misc. 
Items- Residential

$90.00

HVAC- Replacement & Misc. Items- 
Residential

$65.47

Plumbing- Replacement & Misc. 
Items- Residential

$60.00

Remodel- Residential $150.00

Total $365.47

Please remit to: SAFEbuilt LLC Lockbox #88135
PO Box 88135, Chicago, IL 60680-1135

$365.47Net Invoice:

Freight: $0.00

Sales Tax: $0.00

Invoice Total: $365.47

Invoice Number: 275559 Invoice Date: 2/29/2024 Page: 2Waterloo, WI, City of









































 

 

Karl Junginger Memorial Library   
Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda    

November 28, 2023 
   

I. Call to Order & Introductions    
Meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m. Present: Abby Vosters, Cindy Krueger, Miriam 
Schilling, Art Biermeier, and Kelli Mountford.  
   

II. Approval of agenda   
Hearing no additions, the agenda was approved as presented.    
   

III. Approval of open minutes from October 24th, 2023. Hearing no corrections, the minutes 
were approved as presented.    
   

IV. Correspondence, Appearance, Public Comments  
Two Thanksgiving cards were passed around for the Board to look at. The Board was 
each given a 2024 Memory Café brochure.  

 
V. Director’s Report  

Mountford forgot to include it in the packet. Mountford summarized and stated it 
would be included in the next board packet.  

  
VI.  Unfinished Business  

  
A. Financial monthly report for October 2023 – Action   

Biermeier moved to approve the October monthly finance report as presented.  Krueger 
seconded. Motion passed unanimously.    

B. Budget 2024 – Action  
Krueger moved to approve the amended 2024 budget with the new Income/Life 
insurance information. Schilling seconded. Motion passed unanimously. 

C. Meals on Wheels – Informational  
Meals on Wheels program was discussed. Jefferson County may contact City Hall to see 
the availability of rooms to use for their new site manager for Waterloo.  

D. Kunkel Invoice/proposal update/Final invoice and numbers – Informational  
Discussion took place of the final numbers that were submitted through email by Mayor 
Quimby.  

E. Policy 450 Wireless Internet Service – Action 
Biermeier moved to approve Policy 450 with the updated corrections. Schilling seconded. 
Motion passed unanimously.  

F. Policy 455 Outdoor signage – Action 
Biermeier moved to approve Policy 455 as is. Krueger seconded. Motion passed 
unanimously.  

G. Job Descriptions Library Asst II and Lib Asst III – Action 



 

 

Biermeier moved to approve the Lib Asst ii and Lib Asst III job descriptions with the 
updated information. Krueger seconded. Motion passed unanimously.  

H. Update on staff/board get-together – Informational  
Discussion took place that January or February would be a good time to have a get-
together with library staff and the library board. This will include the two new hires. 

 
VII. New Business    

 
A. 2024 Bridges Annual Addendum – Action  

Biermeier moved to approve the 2024 Bridges Annual Addendum fees as is. Kreuger 
seconded. Motion passed unanimously. 

B. Hoopla Costs for 2024 – Informational  
Mountford stated that she reduced the monthly amount of patron checkouts from four 
to three. No complaints from patrons. Will keep an eye on usage and cost in 2024.  

C. 2024 Library Closed Dates – Action 
Schilling moved to approve the following 2024 library close dates;  

Jan. 1st, Jan. 2nd (staff in-service), Mar. 29 & 30, May 25 & 27, July 4, Aug. 7 (staff in-service), 
Aug. 31, Sept. 2, Nov. 28, 29 &30, Dec. 24 & 25, and Dec. 31 open ½ day 9 a.m. to 1 p.m. 

Krueger seconded. Motion passed unanimously.  
D. 2024 Contract for Jefferson County Library Services – Action  

Biermeier moved to approve the 2024 Contract for Jefferson County Library Services. 
Schilling seconded. Motion passed unanimously.  

   
VIII. Future agenda items – 

   
IX. Date, place, and time of the next meeting    

December Library Board Meeting Cancelled due to Holidays. Next board meeting will be 
held on Tuesday, January 23rd at 5:30 p.m.  
     

X. Adjournment    
Biermeier moved to adjourn at 6:22 p.m. Kreuger seconded. Motion passed 
unanimously 
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
Cindy Krueger, Secretary/Finance  

 



Regular meeting of the Waterloo Water & Light Commission held March 5, 2024  
The meeting was called to order by President Tom Bergan at 7:00pm at the Waterloo Utilities 
office. Present were Commissioners Vern Butzine, Devin Schumann, Tim Thomas, Chuck Wallace, 
and Superintendent Barry Sorenson.  
 
Minutes 
It was moved by Schumann, seconded by Wallace, to approve the minutes of the February 6, 2024 
meeting.  Motion carried. 
 
Expenditures 
It was moved by Thomas, seconded by Butzine, to approve the payment of the February bills as 
presented.  Motion carried. 
 
Citizen Input 
None. 
 
WWTP Pay Request 
It was moved by Schumann, seconded by Wallace, to recommend approval of the Portzen’s Pay 
Request #10 in the amount of $1,054,946.90.  Motion carried. 
 
WWTP Change Order for Emergency Lighting 
Due to a change in interpretation by the DNR regarding the Emergency Lighting delay before the 
generator supplies electricity required a change order. 
 
General Information 
Discussed the upcoming DPW meeting regarding sidewalks on Hendricks St.  
 
It was moved by Schumann, seconded by Butzine, to adjourn at 7:36pm. Motion carried.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Tim Thomas 
Secretary 



List of Bills
Axley Brynelson LLP 844.80 North Central Lab 1,161.78
APG of Southern Wisconsin 47.27 NAPA Auto Parts 36.99
Baker Tilly 21,000.00 Payment Service Network 12.95
BMO 1,123.42 Payroll 77,120.02
Border States 5,084.10 Piggly Wiggly 173.12
BP Credit Card Center 1,468.41 Portland Sanitary District 12,330.10
Brogan Investment LLC 23.78 Portzen Construction 843,130.52
Charter Communications 244.96 Quarles & Brady LLP 17,000.00
City of Lake Mills Utilities 2,364.92 Resco 1,461.91
City of Waterloo Treasurer 53,736.56 Royal Compressed Air 500.00
C&M Hydraulic Tool Supply 1,816.34 Seera 1,317.18
Central States Diesel Generators 35,900.00 SJE Inc 8,286.63
Diverse Electric 235.00 Solenis LLC 4,806.00
DNR Operator Certification 45.00 Town & Country Engineering 34,713.75
DOA 507.82 United Liquid Waste Recycling 2,775.00
Dunneisen Excavating 294.71 US Cellular 221.97
Ehlers 6.79 Unifirst Corp 426.93
Forster Electrical Engineering 590.00 UPS 112.13
Frontier 445.91 Utility Sales and Service 128.00
GFC Leasing 115.00 Visa 2611.23
GLS Utility LLC 151.00 Waterloo Building Center 64.00
Hawkins 1,744.64 Waterloo Utilities 12,689.94
Howie's Hardware 674.22 WE Energies 2,362.33
Infosend 993.52 Wisconsin Dept. of Revenue 4,338.59
Idexx Distribution Inc 8,977.19 WPPI Energy 211,137.36
K&B Auto 264.42
MEUW 5,785.00

Total Disbursements $1,383,403.21

Checking Account #102-613:
  Balance 1/31/24 $272,226.15
  Deposits 1,216,968.90
  Disbursements (1,383,006.08)
  Interest 189.95
  Balance 2/29/24 $106,378.92

WWTP Account #374-547 (DNR Replacement Fund)
  Balance 1/31/24 $559,793.24
  Deposit/ (Withdrawal) (98.38)
  Interest 1,552.36
  Balance 2/29/24 $561,247.22

Debt Service Account #3015323:
  Balance 1/31/24 $240,049.89
  Deposit 44,347.00
  Bond Payment/Svc Fees (55.98)
  Interest 788.65
  Balance 2/29/24 $285,129.56

Money Market Account #110-832:
  Balance 1/31/24 1,249,135.48
  Deposits 1,018,356.77
  Transfer (700,000.00)
  Disbursements (44,582.98)
  Interest 4,151.91
  Balance 2/29/24 $1,527,061.18

Transportation Fund
  Balance 1/31/24 $12,586.00
  Transfer
  Balance 2/29/24 $12,586.00

WWTP Interim Financing:
  Balance 1/31/24 $57,481.60
  Transferred in
  Transferred out
  Interest 219.31
  Service Charge (6.79)
  Balance 2/29/24 $57,694.12

Avestar CD #3596 (Bond Reserve):
  Balance 1/31/24 312,791.33
  Interest
  Balance 2/29/24 $312,791.33

CD #613386 (Bond Reserve):
  Balance 1/31/24 224,180.21
  Interest
  Balance 2/29/24 $224,180.21



Minutes for February 13th 2024 CATV Board Meeting, 6:00 pm  

The Solarium, 575 West Madison St. Waterloo, WI  

 

1.Roll Call and Call to Order Called to order at 6:14 pm. Abitz, Cotting, Jacob, Teubert present plus one 

vacancy. Manager Davis present. 

 

2. Approval of Previously Unapproved Meeting Minutes: 

January 9th (rescheduled to January 10) 2024 meeting. Abitz/Jacob. Unanimous. 

 

3. Citizen Input 

Cotting suggested WLOO donate unopened bottles of alcohol left over from September’s Event to the 

Waterloo Booster’s raffle in return for mentions by the event’s MC. LaRon will contact Leslie Fugate to arrange. 

 

4. Manager’s report. 

In January I was able to attend the Waterloo Business Association meeting.  We talked about what will be 

happening in waterloo this year and what ways the station could be of assistance. Our videographers recorded 

and produced their first show independently and the outcome was great.    Just a few things to improve on but 

overall, enough to maintain a successful stream.  At this current moment we have 199 subscribers on our 

YouTube channel, and we have eight hundred views in the last 28 days.  This is 199 more views than the 

previous month according to the analytics.  

This is great because YouTube no longer requires one thousand subs for monetization. Its new requirement is 

five hundred subscribers.   Most of our traffic is coming from inside YouTube itself so the mission is to continue 

posting on YouTube. All other station operations continue as normal.  

LaRon’s responses: YouTube requires 500 subscribers for monetization. Working on promotional videos for 

WFRD, WLOO needs a designated WFRD contact. Chris’ Classic Cinema will have a Canadian guest. 

 

5. New Business 

  

6. Unfinished Business.  

a. “WLOO Cable Board Policy on Media Production and Broadcasting Public Content” (formerly 

‘Policy document regarding paid vs volunteer work by staff’) 

LaRon passed out Rental, Membership and Price packaging forms for review. After discussion, it 

was agreed WLOO is not quite ready to offer membership packages and rental options were limited 

at this time. Price packages for services WLOO can offer will be finalized by staff. It was decided to 

split the document into two parts: 1 to be a DRAFT membership document, the other to be a 

broadcasting document. Abitz will implement and report back. 

b. 2024 WLOO Holiday Event : An informal potluck will be held Friday March 15th. 

c. Updated Employee Evaluation form: Cotting passed out printed copies of the updated Employee 

Evaluation form and requested Board members to bring completed copies to the March 12th meeting 

for LaRon Davis’ annual evaluation. 

 

7. Future Agenda Items and Announcements.  

Abitz announced Tuesday evenings will no longer work starting in June. 

Station Manager Performance Evaluation at March meeting. 

Next Meeting: Tuesday, March 12th, 2024 at 6:00 pm at The Solarium.  

 

8. Adjournment Motion Cotting/Jacob 7:20 pm. 

Minutes respectfully submitted March 11, 2024 by Laura Cotting 

 









200-4. Burning Regulations

A.

Outdoor burning prohibited. No person shall cause, allow or permit outdoor burning of

refuse, garbage, plant life, leaves or other combustible material within the City, except as

permitted under Subsection C.

B.

Incinerators prohibited. It shall be unlawful for any person to operate and maintain or

cause to be operated and maintained any incinerator within the City, except as permitted

under Subsection C.

C.

Exceptions:

(1)

Outdoor burning in connection with the preparation of food.

(2)

The burning of refuse in a properly designed, operated and maintained incinerator, duly

licensed by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources to be effective for the

purpose of air pollution control, or outdoor burning by the City of Waterloo pursuant to a

permit by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources.

(3)

Small outdoor flames for welding, acetylene torches, safety flares, heating tar or similar

applications.

(4)

Any outdoor burning for which a person has obtained a permit from the Waterloo Fire

Department.

(5)

A fire set for the purpose of training public or private fire-fighting personnel.

(6)

A fire set or required by a public officer for the abatement of nuisances and which is

necessary in carrying out public health functions.

D.

Permit required. (1) One time inspection for any new permanent installation of a fire pit

(bricks & mortar, concrete, etc.)

(1)



The Waterloo Fire Department shall issue a permit for outdoor fires (apply at Waterloo

City Hall):

(a)

When it can be shown by the applicant that such outdoor burning is necessary and not

contrary to the interests of public health; or

(b)

When the fire is a campfire or a fire used solely for recreational purposes or for ceremonial

occasions.

(2)

No permit shall be issued within one year of the date of the prior revocation of an outdoor

fire permit previously obtained by the applicant.

(3)

This permit shall expire on December 31 of the year issued.

(4)

This permit does not allow for the installation of a heating source for any building.

(5)

There shall be no annual permit fee.

E.

Responsibilities Responsibility of permit holder.

The permit holder Resident shall have the following responsibilities:

(1)

To adhere to all health and fire prevention codes.

(2)

To have adult (18 years of age or older) supervisory personnel present at the site of the

outdoor burning.

(3)

To comply with the following conditions: which shall be set forth on the permit issued to

the applicant:

(a)

Any fire deemed to be a public health nuisance by the Fire Chief or his or her designee

shall be extinguished.

(b)

This permit shall apply to all manufactured burning rings, fireplaces, fire pits, chimneys or

like devices.



(c)

No manufactured device shall be placed on any combustible surface.

(d)

The fire must be completely extinguished before the fire location may be left

unsupervised.

(e)

The fire shall be no larger than four feet in diameter, subject to the exceptions listed below.

(f)

No flammable liquids shall be used to start or support the burning.

(g)

Only virgin wood and charcoal fuel will be allowed to be burned. "Virgin wood" means

wood and other wood products, such as bark, but not to include sawdust, which have had

no chemical treatments or finishes applied.

(h)

Under no circumstances shall plastics, trash, garbage, oils, hydrocarbon fuels, furniture,

fabrics, leaves, yard waste, synthetic materials of any kind, pressure-treated wood or

wood that has been finished with paints, varnishes, laminates or a similar finish be burned.

Burn Barrels are not allowed within the city limits.

(i)

The fire shall be located at least 10 feet from property lines and at least 20 feet from any

building or structure. This does not apply to manufactured devices.

(j)

A functional extinguishing aid must be present, such as a fire extinguisher, garden hose,

etc.

(4)

Exceptions. A bonfire exceeding the size restrictions set forth in Subsection E(3)(e) will

be permitted for churches, organized schools, and civic organizations and only if

application for site review has been made and approved by the Waterloo Fire Department.

Such bonfire shall be no more than 10 feet in diameter or 10 feet by 10 feet square and

no more than six feet high and must comply with all other provisions of the permit.

F.

Emergency provisions. Notwithstanding any other provision of this section, the Fire Chief,

in times of extreme dryness or drought, deficiency in the water supply or by reason of any

other emergency, is authorized to prohibit the setting of any fires upon any lands within

the City by providing published notice of the declared emergency. and the scope of the



declaration in the local newspaper on the date that the emergency is declared to begin

and by providing published notice broadcast through local radio or cable television. Public

notice will be made by city wide call (Connect final site) as well as website and social

media.



Page 1 of 2 
3/13/2024 11:29 AM 

 

2023 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 
 
COMPOSITION & ORGANIZATION: 
Chairperson: Janae O’Connell  Vice Chairperson: Michelle Soter 
[NOTE: A roster is attached for reference.] 
 
The Community Development Authority (“CDA”) met once a month except for February and October .  
Meetings were held in Council Chambers. The Clerk/Treasurer provided staff support.  Everett Butzine 
from Non-Metro is currently the Economic Developer.   
 
POWERS AND DUTIES: 
As granted by Chapter 35 of the municipal code, the CDA shall have all powers and duties in §§ 66.1333 
Wis. Stats. (Operating as a Redevelopment Authority for the purposes of blight elimination and slum 
clearance). Furthermore, it shall have all powers and duties in §§ 66.1201 Wis. Stats. (Run municipal 
housing projects; none currently).  The CDA also has the powers, duties and functions related to 
community development as are conferred upon it by the Common Council.  This most recent ordinance 
changes have assigned authority relating to Tax Incremental Finance to the CDA. 
 
GOALS & OBJECTIVES:  
CDA received monthly reports reporting on its goals and objectives. 
 
ACTIVITIES: 

 
1. Duqaine Development  - N Monroe and Clarkson Rd.  The developer worked through driveway 

placement with the DOT and looking into other funding sources.   
 

2. Downtown Development Plan  Received plan from SEH.  Looking into avenues for funding.   
 

3. 333 Portland Road.  Numerous people are interested in property development, but nothing has 
been submitted.   
 

4. Blight Removal.  The CDA received monthly updates regarding blight in the city.  In 2024 Public 
Health and Safety will be taking over the blight list.   
 

5. Façade Grants - Program updated.  3 grants dispersed.  Two for 103 N Monroe St.  (Kevin Henry) 
Luminous Rose for exterior and interior totaling $9,643.00.  One for 129 N Monroe St. (Steve 
Parker) totaling $5000.00.  Total disbursement of $14,643.00 in 2023 
 

6. Maunesha Business Center.  During 2023 the building was rented for yoga, art studio, stain glass 
sales and the Waterloo Business Association meetings.   
 

7. Financial Activity and Fund 600 (Community Development Authority).  Revenues and expenses for 
the CDA are segregated to Fund 600.  The CDA was presented with monthly financial statements 
for this fund as well as Funds 412, 413 and 414 (the three tax incremental finance district funds).  



Page 2 of 2  
3/13/2024 11:29 AM 

 
8. New TID Created - TID 5 created. North end of Waterloo wrapping around to Van Holten area.  Will 

be funded in 2024 
 

9. Senior Housing Study – Cedar Corp reviewed Waterloo’s need for senior housing in Waterloo.   
 

10. BID District – Discussion of potential BID district in downtown Waterloo.   
 

11. The 2023 year-end  fund balance for Fund 600 (CDA) is: $25,000. 


	Insert from: "Minutes 03052024.pdf"
	Insert from: "Bills & Report of Cash Feb 24.pdf"
	Sheet1



